
 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 3 August 2016 10.00 am Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Kathleen Brothwell (Chair), Ronald Hills and 
Loraine Woolley 
 

Substitute member(s): 
 

Councillor Pat Vaughan 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Ian Cullen, Democratic Services and Legal Services 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

2.  Procedure for Hearing  
 

3 - 6 

3.  Application for a Premises Licence: Morrisons Petrol Filling Station, 
Tritton Road, Lincoln, LN6 7QL  
 

7 - 64 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally blank.



 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
Procedure for Hearings 
 
(1) The Chair will introduce him/herself and will introduce the other 

members of the sub-committee, the Licensing Officer, the Clerk to the 
sub-committee and any other officers present to advise the sub-
committee. 

 
(2) The Chair will request all parties taking part in the proceedings to 

introduce themselves to the Sub -Committee. 
 

(3) The Chair will then ask the Licensing Officer to open the proceedings 
by: 

 

 stating the nature of the matter to be considered; 

 giving the name of the applicant or licence holder; and 

 where appropriate, the name of the premises or place concerned; 
and 

 outlining the application and the relevant representations and/or 
notices made and/or given in respect of the application. 

 
(4) The Chair will then ask the Licensing Officer to confirm whether or not 

the formal requirements in respect of the matter to be considered have 
been complied with. 

 
(5) If not satisfied as to any formal requirements, the sub-committee will 

decide whether to: 
 continue with its consideration of the matter; or 
 adjourn the proceedings to enable the formal requirements to be 

completed; or 
 dismiss the application. 
 

(6) The Chair will then explain the procedure the sub-committee intends to 
follow at the hearing and shall advise the parties of the period of time 
each will be allowed to make their application and/or representation.  If 
the Chair considers that there is no need for a time limit, he should say 
so. 

 
(7) The sub-committee will then consider any representations in regard to 

the period of time allowed for the parties and any request made by a 
party for permission for another person to appear at the hearing to assist 
the licensing authority in regard to that party’s application, 
representations or notice (such permission will not be unreasonably 
withheld). 

 
(8) The procedure for the hearing shall be as follows: 
 

(a) The applicant, or their representative, will present their case. In 
presenting the case the applicant, or their representative, may give 

3

Item No. 2



evidence and may call any other person, given permission to 
appear by the sub-committee, to assist in the proceedings. Each 
shall, in turn: 
 give evidence; 
 may be questioned by any other party; 
 may be questioned by members of the sub-committee; 
 may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the applicant or their 

representative calling them. 
 

(b) If a time limit has been imposed, the applicant and/or their 
representative shall not, in presenting the case, exceed the period 
of time allowed for this purpose. 

 
(c) The other party or parties, or their respective representatives, will 

each, in turn, present their case(s).  Where there is more than one 
other party, in the absence of agreement, the sub-committee will 
decide the order in which the cases shall be presented. In 
presenting the case any party, or their representative, may give 
evidence and may call any other person, given permission by the 
sub-committee to appear, to assist in the proceedings. Each shall, 
in turn:  
 give evidence; 
 may be questioned by any other party; 
 may be questioned by members of the sub-committee; 
 may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the applicant or their 

representative 
calling them. 

 
(d) If a time limit has been imposed each other party and/or their 

representative shall not, in presenting the case, exceed the period of 
time allowed for this purpose. 

 
(e) Once all parties have put their cases to the sub-committee, each 

party will be given the opportunity of summing up their case in the 
order they were presented. The Chair may propose that no more 
than 5 minutes will be allowed to each party for this purpose, but 
may take representations if any are made. 

 
(f) Members of the sub-committee may ask the parties, or any persons 

present to assist, for any additional information or clarification 
required. 

 
(9) The Chair will then advise the parties that the sub-committee will retire to 

determine the application. The sub-committee will be accompanied by 
the Clerk to the sub-committee, whose only role will be to record the 
decision and the reasons for that decision. The sub-committee may, after 
retiring, call upon the Licensing Authority’s legal representative if it 
requires clarification on a point of law. 

 
(10) The sub-committee will consider its decision.  The decision of the 

majority of the sub-committee shall be the decision of the sub-
committee. 

 
(11) There are timescales, depending on the nature of the application, by 

which the sub-committee must determine an application and the 
timescale will be included in the officer’s report. 

 

4



(12) If the hearing requires a decision at the conclusion of the hearing then 
having reached a decision, the sub-committee shall reconvene to 
announce the decision to the parties. Before doing so, where legal 
advice has been sought, the legal representative will inform the parties 
of what advice was given and the parties shall be afforded the 
opportunity to comment on that advice. 

 
(13) If the decision does not have to be made at the conclusion of the hearing 

the sub-committee must make its decision within five working days 
beginning with the day or last day on which the hearing was held.  This 
does not preclude the Sub-committee making its decision on the day or 
last day of the hearing. 

 
(14) The Chair will announce the sub-committee’s decision together with the 

reasons for the decision. This will, where applicable, include details of 
any conditions imposed and the reasons for their imposition or, where no 
conditions have been imposed, the reason(s) for not doing so. 

 
 
 
 

5



POINTS TO NOTE RELATING TO HEARINGS 
 
(a) Members of the sub-committee must remain throughout all of the 

hearing. 
 
(b) Members of the sub-committee must confine themselves to questions 

and NOT embark on discussions upon the merits or otherwise of the 
application or evidence until they consider their decision. 

 
(c) The strict rules of evidence do not apply so hearsay evidence is 

admissible. 
 
(d) Where a large number of interested parties are involved in a particular 

hearing, they will be encouraged to appoint a spokesperson or 
spokespersons so as to avoid duplication of evidence. 

 
(e) A general assumption will be made that all parties have read and 

understood the relevant paperwork and background documents before 
attending the hearing.   There should be no need for parties to 
duplicate word for word the contents of   their written submissions. 

 
(f) Unless indicated otherwise, the hearing will take place in public. If the 

public are to be excluded then full reasons for doing so will be given by 
the Chair. 

 
(g) In determining applications and representations members of the sub-

committee will give appropriate weight to:  
 The argument and evidence presented by all parties; 
 The four licensing objectives of the Licensing Act 2003, namely 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder, 
(b) the prevention of public nuisance, 
(c) public safety, and 
(d) the protection of children from harm; 

 The Statement of Licensing Policy of the City of Lincoln Council; 
 Section 182 Statutory Guidance issued by the Home Office; 
 Any steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives; and 
 Information contained in any operating schedule submitted by the 

applicant. 
 
(h) The general principles under which members of the sub-committee will 

consider all licensing applications are:                                        
 A fair and unbiased mind; 
 On its own merits; 
 Any pre-conceived opinions and resolutions will be put aside; 
 They will act without any prejudice or partiality; 
 They will consider both the interests of the public and the rights of the 

applicant; and 
 They will treat all applicants fairly and equally. 

 
(i) The sub-committee is required to give reasons for its decision.  Such 

reasons need to be clear and include an explanation of why it has 
reached its decision including what it relied on to do so (e.g. what 
evidence was accepted, and what evidence was rejected, and why). 

 
(j) If, in making its decision, the Sub-Committee considered it proper to 

depart from the Section 182 Guidance or its own Licensing Policy it is 
also required to give full reasons for so departing. 
 

6



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

         3 AUGUST 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE  
MORRISONS PETROL FILLING STATION, TRITTON ROAD, 
LINCOLN, LN6 7QL 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

COMMUNITIES & ENVIRONMENT 
 

REPORT BY: 
 

IAN CULLEN, LICENSING OFFICER 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 
 

To determine an application for a premises licence and consider representations 
made in respect of premises known as Morrisons Petrol Filling Station, Tritton 
Road, Lincoln, LN6 7QL 
 

2. The Application 
 

2.1 Under the provisions of section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 on the 14th June 
2016, solicitors acting for WM Morrison Supermarkets Plc, made an application 
for a premises licence for premises known as Morrisons Petrol Filling Station, 
Tritton Road, Lincoln, LN6 7QL. A copy of the application can be seen at 
Appendix A. 
 

2.2 The application seeks to authorise the sale of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises for 24 hours a day, seven days a week and be open to the public 
throughout that time. 
 

2.3 The application also seeks to authorise the provision of late night refreshment 
from 2300 to 0500 seven days a week. 
 

3 Promotion of Licensing Objectives 
 

3.1 In submitting their application, the applicant is required to describe any steps 
intended to be taken in order to promote the following 4 licensing objectives: 

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 Prevention of Public Nuisance and 

 Public Safety 

 The Protection of Children from Harm 
 

3.2 Section M of the application found at Appendix A describes the steps that the 
applicant intends to take to promote the licensing objectives. 
 

4. Relevant Representations – Responsible Authorities    
 

4.1 On the 11th July 2016 the Chief Officer of Police for Lincolnshire has made a 
representation objecting to the grant of the licence stating  that the licensing 
objectives of: 
Prevention of crime and disorder; 
Public safety; and 

7

Item No. 3



Prevention of public nuisance  
Were at risk.   
A copy of the representation and supporting documents can be seen at Appendix 
B. 
 

5. Relevant Representations - Other persons 
 

5.1 On the 29th June 2016 a representation was received from Michael Hayes-
Cowley on behalf of APS Properties objecting to the grant of the licence stating 
that the licensing objectives of: 
Prevention of crime and disorder; and 
Prevention of public nuisance  
Were at risk.   
Full details of the representation can be seen at Appendix C. 
 

5.2 On the 11th July 2016 a representation was received from Paul Rowlinson, 
Operational Compliance Director for Vero Group objecting to the grant of the 
licence stating that the licensing objectives of: 
Prevention of crime and disorder;  
Public Safety; and 
Prevention of public nuisance. 
Were at risk.   
Full details of the representation can be seen at Appendix D. 
 

5.3 On the 11th July 2016 a representation was received from University of Lincoln 
Students’ Union objecting to the grant of the licence stating that the licensing 
objectives of: 
Prevention of crime and disorder;  
Public Safety; and 
Prevention of public nuisance.  
Were at risk.   
Full details of the representation can be seen at Appendix E. 
 

6. Considerations 
      

6.1 Section 176 of Licensing Act 2003 
 

6.1.1 The police representation makes reference to section 176 of the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 

6.1.2 A document of information relating to section 176 can be found at Appendix F. 
 

6.1.3 This document is submitted by the Licensing Officer as a guidance for all the 
parties regarding the issues relating to the applicability of Section 176 to these 
proceedings. It is not intended to represent a legal opinion. 
  

6.1.4 Following consideration of the information provided at Appendix F and any 
further information that may be provided at the committee hearing the sub-
committee may wish to determine the applicability of Section 176 before 
proceeding to address the other substantive issues. 
 
 

8



 
6.2 Section 182 Guidance and Licensing Authority Policy 

 
6.2.1 The duty of the Licensing Authority is to promote the licensing objectives having 

regard to the Act and Regulations made thereunder, Guidance issued under 
S182 of the Act by the Home Office and the Council’s own Licensing Policy. 
 

6.2.2 Copies of the Statutory Guidance issued by the Home Office, known as Section 
182 guidance and a copy of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy will be 
available for consultation at the hearing. 
 

6.2.3 The Council’s policy requires the Sub-Committee to determine applications on 
their own merits. 
 

6.2.4 The Sub-Committee must consider the points raised in the representations at 
Appendices B to E, on the likely effect of the grant of this licence on the licensing 
objectives identified within them. The onus falls upon those making 
representations to show that such consequences, based on the balance of 
probabilities (i.e. more probable than not), are a likely effect of the grant of a 
licence. 
 

6.2.5 S182 paragraph 8.33 
In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to 
the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the 
expectations of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the 
steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to 
demonstrate knowledge of their local area when describing the steps they 
propose to take to promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities are expected to publish information about what is meant 
by the promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants can 
readily access advice about these matters. However, applicants are also 
expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which the premises 
are situated to inform the content of the application. 
 

6.2.6 S182 paragraph 8.34 
Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable 
them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote 
the licensing objectives, that they understand: 

- the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and 
disorder hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas 
where children may congregate;  

- any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable 
activities; and  

- any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or 
voluntary schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street 
pastors and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks. 

6.2.7 Paragraph 4.2 of the Council’s Licensing Policy states: 
Shops, stores and supermarkets should generally be permitted to sell alcohol for 
consumption off the premises during the normal hours they intend to open for 
shopping purposes. However, in the case of individual shops that are known to 
be or are in an area which is known to be a focus of disorder and disturbance 

9



then, subject to receiving relevant representations, a limitation on licensing hours 
may be appropriate. 
  

6.2.8 Paragraph 4.3 of the Council’s Licensing Policy states: 
The Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the 
individual merits of each application. When issuing a licence or certificate, 
subject to receiving relevant representations, it may be necessary to impose 
stricter conditions with regard to noise control and/or limitations to the opening 
hours on premises which are situated in residential or sensitive areas. 
 

6.2.9 S182 paragraph 2.1 states: 
Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on 
crime and disorder. 
 

6.2.10 S182 paragraph 9.12 states: 
In their role as a responsible authority, the police are an essential source of 
advice and information on the impact and potential impact of licensable activities, 
particularly on the crime and disorder objective. The police have a key role in 
managing the night-time economy and should have good working relationships 
with those operating in their local area. The police should be the licensing 
authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the promotion of the 
crime and disorder licensing objective, but may also be able to make relevant 
representations with regard to the other licensing objectives if they have 
evidence to support such representations. The licensing authority should accept 
all reasonable and proportionate representations made by the police unless the 
authority has evidence that to do so would not be appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. However, it remains incumbent on the police to 
ensure that their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would 
be subject at a hearing. 
 

6.2.11 Paragraphs 1.8 and 2.6 of the Council’s Licensing Policy states: 
The Licensing Authority cannot attach conditions to licences, certificates or 
provisional statements unless they are mandatory, volunteered by the applicant 
or imposed by it following a hearing resulting from the receipt of relevant 
representations. 
The Licensing Authority does not intended to duplicate existing legislation and 
regulatory regimes that already place obligations on employers and operators 
(for example, The Health and Safety (First Aid) Regulations 1981 and the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005) and it will therefore not attach 
conditions to licences if they are already adequately covered by other legislation. 
 

6.2.12 The only conditions which should be imposed on a premises licence (as opposed 
to being volunteered on the operating schedule) are those which the Sub-
Committee consider appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. Any conditions should be tailored to the individual 
characteristics and activities of the premises and determined on a case to case 
basis.  (See paragraph 10.10 of S182 Guidance). 
 

6.2.13 Such conditions should be expressed in unequivocal and unambiguous terms in 
order that they are understood and not subject to legal challenge. 
 

6.2.14 Lord Justice Scott Baker in the case of Crawley Borough Council v Stuart 

10



Attenborough and Angela Attenborough said, “Let me say a brief word in general 
terms.  It is important that the terms of a premises licence and any conditions 
attached to it should be clear; not just clear to those having specialized 
knowledge of licensing, such as the local authority or the manager of the 
premises, but also to the independent bystander such as neighbours, who may 
have no knowledge of licensing at all. “ 
 

6.3 Human Rights Act 
 

6.3.1 Article 6 – right to a fair hearing 
“In the determination of his civil rights and obligations or of any criminal charge 
against him, everyone is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable 
time by an independent and impartial tribunal established by law. Judgment shall 
be pronounced publicly but the press and public may be excluded from all or part 
of the trial in the interest of morals, public order or national security in a 
democratic society, where the interests of juveniles or the protection of the 
private life of the parties so require, or to the extent strictly necessary in the 
opinion of the court in special circumstances where publicity would prejudice the 
interests of justice.” 
The right to engage in commercial activities is a civil right – 
Kaplan v United Kingdom 1980 
Pudas v Sweden 1987 
 

6.3.2 Article 8 – right to respect for private and family life 
“1. Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and 
his correspondence. 
2. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this 
right except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a 
democratic society in the interests of national security, public safety or the 
economic well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for 
the protection of health or morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms 
of others.” 
Removal or restriction of a licence may affect a person’s private life. 
 

6.3.3 Article 1, Protocol 1 – peaceful enjoyment of possessions 
“Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions. No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public 
interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law and by the general 
principles of international law. 
The preceding provisions shall not, however, in any way impair the right of a 
State to enforce such laws as it deems necessary to control the use of property 
in accordance with the general interest or to secure the payment of taxes or 
other contributions or penalties.” 
The right to engage in commercial activities under the benefit of a licence or 
registration is a possession 
Tre Traktorer Aktiebolag v Sweden 1989 
 

6.3.4 The holding of this hearing where the applicant and those making 
representations can give written or oral evidence either personally or through a 
representative ensures that the requirements of the Human Rights Act has been 
complied with. 
 

11



 
6.4 Other Considerations 

 
6.4.1 The Sub-committee is charged with furthering the objectives of the legislation in 

the decisions that it makes. It is not bound by the civil or criminal procedure 
rules. It should consider the material which has been placed before it, question 
any statement made either in favour of or against the application by way of fact 
finding with a critical mind and then make a decision which appears to it to be 
logical, sensible and appropriate to advance the policy of the legislation in its 
area. 
 

6.4.2 That decision must be based on evidence, but that means no more than it must 
be based on material which tends logically to show the existence or non-
existence of facts relevant to the issue to be determined, or to show the 
likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future event, the occurrence 
of which would be relevant. 
 

6.4.3 The Sub-Committee should expect original evidence to be put before it by any 
party.  It is not enough for the Sub-Committee simply to rely upon material 
submitted; it must apply a critical mind to the quality and reliability of that material 
for itself.  
 

6.4.4 The weight the Sub-committee put on such material is for it to decide.  

6.4.5 The Sub-committee is entitled to, and indeed obliged to, consider any relevant 
material that appears useful in coming to a decision, including its own local 
knowledge. 
  

6.4.6 If the Sub-Committee is minded to impose further conditions or modify conditions 
offered in the operating schedule then any such conditions should be achievable, 
realistic, appropriate, proportionate and within the control of the licence holder.  
They should be based on a proper, common sense consideration of the risks to 
the licensing objectives identified in the application and representations and what 
can realistically be done to mitigate them. 
 

6.4.7 Notices of this hearing were forwarded to all parties on the 14th July 2016. 
 

7. Options 
 

7.1 The Sub-Committee must, having regard to the application and representations, 
take such of the steps mentioned below as it considers appropriate, rational and 
reasonable for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

7.2 The following options are available to the Sub-Committee: 

 Grant the application as applied for, with no additional conditions;  

 Grant the application with additional conditions or modified conditions 
attached to alleviate the concerns raised through the representation. (NB 
Conditions cannot be attached with respect to any part of the application 
on which no representation has been received.); 

 To partially grant the application in respect of the permitted activities and 
hours of the permitted activities; 

 Refuse the application. 

12



 

7.3 The Sub-Committee is required to give reasons for its decision.  Such reasons 
need to be clear and include an explanation of why it has reached its decision 
including what it relied on to do so (e.g. what evidence was accepted, and what 
evidence was rejected, and why).   
 

7.4 If the Sub-Committee refuses the application, it must give reasons why it refused 
and why conditions would not have been effective in this instance. 
 

8. List of associated papers 
 

8.1 Appendix A:  Application for premises licence 
Appendix B:   Representation from Lincolnshire Police 
Appendix C:   Representation from APS Properties 
Appendix D  Representation from Vero Group  
Appendix E  Representation from University of Lincoln Students’ Union 
Appendix F  Information relating to S176 of the Licensing Act 2003 

  
 

Lead Officer:  Ian Cullen 
Licensing Officer 
01522 873564 
 

13



This page is intentionally blank.



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



T
his page is intentionally blank.



$gttahzu5 

 
Licensing Act 2003 

 
Representation by a Responsible Authority 

 

Note:  Please be aware that this form may be viewed by the Applicant or by a 
representative of the Applicant.  It may also be read out in public at the 
Licensing Act 2003 Committee hearing. 

 
Representations may be made at any time during a period of 28 consecutive 

days starting on the day after the application was given to the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
Representations are only relevant to an application if they relate to at least one 
of the four Licensing Objectives listed below: 

 
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

2. Public Safety 
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
4. The Protection of Children from Harm 

 
Please enter your details below: 

 

Responsible 
Authority: 

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE 

Contact Officer: PC 519 MAGSON 

Address: C/O Lincolnshire Police HQ 

Telephone Number: 01522 558380 

E-mail: laura.magson@lincs.pnn.police.uk 

 
Please provide details of the application to which your representation refers: 

 

Name: Morrison’s Petrol Filling Station 

Address: Tritton Road, Lincoln, LN6 7QL 

Application Details: New premise licence 

Date Application 

Received: 
14th June 2016 

  

 

 

35



$gttahzu5 

Please provide details of your representation in the box below.  Indicate which of 
the Licensing Objectives your representation refers to by ticking the relevant 

box(es): 
 

 X  The Prevention of Crime and Disorder  

 X  Public Safety  

 X  Prevention of Public Nuisance  

     The Protection of Children from Harm  

 

Representation: 

 
 
An application was received by Lincolnshire Police on Tuesday 14th June 2016 submitted by 

Gosschalk Solicitors on behalf of WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC. 

The application seeks to obtain a licence for alcohol sales - 24hours, 7 days a week and Late Night 

Refreshment between 2300 hours and 0500 hours seven days a week.  

Immediate concerns were identified as to the suitability of the activities sought and these were 

conveyed over the telephone to a representative at Gosschalks.   Lincolnshire Police were informed 

that the Solicitors would speak to their clients and make contact regarding any alterations or 

amendments.  Contact was received on Monday 20th June 2016 to state that the application would 

proceed in its current format.  

The application deals with a filling station which are ‘excluded premises’ as defined by section 176 

of the Licensing Act 2003 - Prohibition of alcohol sales at service areas, garages etc.  Section 176 

states that no premise licence has effect to authorise the sale by retail or supply of alcohol on or 

from excluded premises.  

Section 182 Guidance states in relation to Section 176 (excluded premises) that it is for the Licensing 

Authority to decide whether a premises licence in relation to the sales of alcohol should be granted 

based upon information accompanying the application.  It is therefore for the committee to decide, 

based upon the information laid before them, whether or not a premises  is used primarily as garage 

or which forms part of a premises which are primarily so used – as defined by the act.  In this 

instance proof must be provided that the premises are not primarily used for the retailing of fuel.  

The accompanying information submitted with this application is a single pie chart which has no 

time period, no narrative and it is unclear to which premise it even relates.  It is impossible to make 

any evidential analysis of the data it is therefore entirely unacceptable to be submitted as evidence 

of non-fuel based primary usage.  

It has also come to our attention that the plan submitted within the application is not that of the 

existing filling station located on the site for which the licence is submitted.  It is not set out in the 

application that this is a licence application for a hypothetical premise yet to be built however; one 

can only presume this is the case.   This gives even greater cause for concern and lends to the belief 

that either the ambiguous pie chart submitted refers to a premise which will cease to exist or that it 

is merely an aspirational forecast with no evidential basis.  Either way the restrictions under S176 do 

not appear to have been overcome.   

36



$gttahzu5 

Should the committee be minded to consider the application further Lincolnshire Police also wish to 

submit further serious concerns.  Lincolnshire Police believe that the grant of this licence would have 

a negative impact on the Licensing objectives – namely the prevention of crime and disorder, public 

safety and the prevention of public nuisance.   

 At present the main Morrison’s supermarket is licensed for the sale of alcohol between 0600 hours 

and 2400 hours, allowing for 18 hours of trading 7 days a week although Morrison’s website states 

the store is open from 0800 hours until 2300 hours.   

The filling station is situation across a road from Morrison’s main supermarket and at present has no 

provision for parking on site.  The opportunity for persons walking from the supermarket carpark to 

the filling station shop for grocery purchases only is highly implausible.  It is therefore a logical 

assumption that whilst the supermarket is open for trade the primary use of the site will remain as a 

garage.  This would suggest that the bulk of non-fuel related sales at the proposed licenced premises 

will be between 2300 and 0800 hours and from persons attending on foot.   

Geographically the location of the filling station is within a vast retail district with the only residential 

area in close proximity being predominantly student Halls of residence.   Beyond the usual retailing 

hours of the area the only persons likely to use such a facility for the purchase of alcohol would be 

students from Lincoln University and beyond this time stretching into the early hours of the morning 

are those who are already intoxicated and seeking to gain further alcohol at a time whereby it is not 

available elsewhere.   

This is irresponsible retailing and indicates a disregard towards those who are working towards 

educating young persons as to the dangers and risks associated with the consumption of alcohol.  

Students are deemed to be a vulnerable proportion of the city’s population and a great deal of effort 

is undertaken to promote responsible drinking.  This includes measures by Lincoln University to limit 

the availability of alcohol beyond a certain time to ensure that students do not have easy access to 

alcohol at a time when they might be at their most vulnerable.  

This poses a clear risk to public safety as any alcohol purchased would be for consumption off the 

premises and therefore with none of the safe guarding in place to prevent it from being consumed 

by those already intoxicated and vulnerable.  Whilst it is fair to say that not all alcohol purchased 

through the night will be consumed on that night it is our belief that the vast proportion would be 

and not necessarily only by the individual who has made the purchase.  

Its site is also located approximately 500 metres out of Lincoln’s Cumulative Impact Zone and 

borders the Public Space Protection Order area introduced in 2015.  Both of which identify that 

Lincoln City Centre suffers as a result of a deluge of alcohol availability and seek to address alcohol 

related issues of anti-social and criminal behaviour by restricting its availability and consumption.  

Please see annex A for an illustration of these areas in relation to the proposed site.    

To grant a licence to sell alcohol 24 hours a day, 7 days a week on the edge of such a sensitive area 

would undermine the efforts of both Lincoln City Council and Lincolnshire Police.   

To add to the availability, and throughout the time period sought, would undoubtedly have a 

negative impact on crime and disorder and public nuisance within the area.  Its availability would 

attract additional persons to the area throughout the night and persons who are already intoxicated.  

37



$gttahzu5 

Those already intoxicated present many challenges and both evidence and experience shows that 

individuals have lowered inhibitions, often being more confident, louder and more confrontational 

than when not intoxicated.   Individuals are also less likely to be reasoned with should it be 

necessary to refuse the sale of alcohol. The application fails to address in any way how these 

challenges would be addressed.  

As well as being detrimental to the surrounding area and the Licensing Objectives it is also felt that 

the conditions offered up in Part M of the application are insufficient for a basic alcohol licence, let 

alone one that raises such serious concerns.  The conditions are minimal, non-specific and un-

enforceable and in no way offer suitable measures to reduce the risk of harm posed by this 

application.  

Lincolnshire Police respectfully request the refusal of this application.  If this is not deemed 

appropriate in this instance it is requested that the hours for the sale of alcohol are restricted to 

0800 hours to 2300 hours with the addition of conditions as attached at annex B.  If this is also 

deemed inappropriate by the committee Lincolnshire Police request that serious thought be given to 

additional conditioning in such a way as to control the above risks.  

 

 

38



$gttahzu5 

If possible, please suggest alterations to the application that would resolve the 
problem mentioned above, again paying attention to the Licensing Objectives: 

 

 

 

 

39



$gttahzu5 

Have you contacted the applicant to discuss this representation? 
 

 
Yes  No  

 
Do you consider mediation could resolve the issue? 
 

 
Yes  No  

 
Do you propose to attend or be represented at any Committee hearing? 
 

 
Yes  No  

 
Please tick this box if you consent to any notice of any hearing being sent to you 
to the e-mail address provided by you above.  

(please note if any notice is sent to you by electronic means, you will also 
receive confirmation of the same in writing). 

 
 

Please return this form to the following address: 
 
Licensing Team 

Directorate of Resources 
City of Lincoln Council 

City Hall 
Beaumont Fee 
Lincoln 

LN1 1DB 
 

 
Form Last Revised 
May 2005 

 

40



41



This page is intentionally blank.



Annex B 

 

 A CCTV system shall be installed, recording and maintained in working order and operated at 

the premises to the satisfaction of Lincolnshire Police, specifically: 

 There shall be a minimum of one high resolution colour camera, fitted in a weatherproof 

housing, for external coverage of the entrance. 

 There shall be a minimum of one high-resolution colour camera fitted to each public 

entrance/exit. To provide a quality head and shoulder image for facial 

recognition/identification purposes of all persons entering the premises.  

 There shall be sufficient cameras able to cope with the normal operating illumination to 

reasonably cover all licensed public areas.  

 Recordings must be kept for a minimum of 31 days and endorsed with the accurate, correct 

time/date (BST/GMT adjusted).  

 Police and/or Authorised Licensing Officers shall be able on attendance to view immediate 

playback of any incident without the necessity for download. 

 Recordings of incidents at the premises must be provided to the police following lawful 

request. 

 A member of staff shall be on the premises at all times they are open to the public who is 

capable of operating the CCTV system and providing recordings on request.  When this is not 

possible recordings shall be provided within 24 hours of the original request. 

 Recording equipment shall be housed in a secure room/cabinet where access and operation 

is strictly limited to authorised persons. 

 

2 No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of above 6.5ABV (alcohol by volume) shall be sold at 

the premises. 

 

3 A ‘Challenge 25’ Proof of Age scheme will be operated. Anyone attempting to purchase 

alcohol (or other min.18 restricted product) that appears under the age of 25 years will be 

asked for proof of age. Acceptable forms of identification will be a PASS-accredited proof of 

age card, photo driving licence or passport. Failure to produce satisfactory proof of age will 

result in a refused sale. 

 

 

4 Clear, prominent and unobstructed signage informing customers of the Proof of Age scheme 

in operation and the age restrictions on products, will be clearly displayed at: all entry points 

to the premises, adjacent to the age restricted products , and all points of sale. 

 

5 All point of sale staff shall undergo periodic training in the above policy with a record kept of 

the date of training, signed by the member of staff and the trainer. Each entry shall be 

retained for a period of 24 months from date of completion.  This record shall be made 

available for inspection by Lincolnshire Police Officers or other parties acting on their behalf. 

43



 

6 A refusal register will be maintained on the premises in the following format: 

 The register shall be in a bound page format with each page consecutively numbered. 

 Each entry to be timed dated and signed by staff member making the refusal. 

 CCTV evidence to be retained and cross-referenced to the specific refusal. 

 Description and/or name of refused person. 

 Each entry to be dated and signed by the DPS. 

 The item attempted to purchase will be recorded. 

 Reason for refusal will be recorded. 

 Register to be retained for period of 24 months. 

 Register to be produced upon request by Police or Trading Standards. 

 

44



45



46



47



48



Revised 22/6/16 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
Representation by any person 

 
Note:  Please be aware that this form may be viewed by the Applicant or by a 
representative of the Applicant. It may also be read out in public at the sub-committee 
hearing. 
 
Any person can make representations against a relevant licence application.  
Representations may be made on behalf of any person by a representative e.g. MP, 
solicitor, or a friend. 
 
Representations are only relevant to an application if they relate to at least one of the 
four Licensing Objectives listed below: 
 
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
2. Public Safety 
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
4. The Protection of Children from Harm 
 
Representations may be made at any time during a period of 28 consecutive days 
starting on the day after the application was given to the Licensing Authority. 
 
In the case of a closure order issued by the Police, representations may be made during 
the seven days that follow relevant notice being given to the Local Authority by the 
Magistrates Court, starting on the day after the day the notice was received.  
 

 
Please enter contact details 
 

Name: 
 

Paul Rowlinson, Operational Compliance Director 

Address:  
Vero Group Finsbury Circus House 

15 Finsbury Circus 

London 

 

Postcode: EC2M 7EB 
 

Tel: 0203 595 5134 

E-mail: Paul.rowlinson@verogroup.com 

 
 

49



 

 

Please confirm name and address of person or business affected in the vicinity, if 
different from the address given above: 
 

Name: Prodigy Living 

Address: The Pavilions, Ruston Way, Lincoln,  
 
 

Postcode: LN6 7BQ 

 
 
Please provide details of the application to which you wish to make a representation. 
 

Name of 
Applicant: 

WM Morrison Supermarkets plc 

Address of 
Premises 

Morrisons Petrol Filling Station 
Tritton Road 
Lincoln 
LN6 7QL 
 

Application 
Details: 

Application for Premises Licence 

 
 
Please give details of your representation in the box below.  Indicate which of the 
Licensing Objectives your representation refers to by ticking the relevant box(es)s: 
 

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder    x   

 Public Safety        x   

 Prevention of Public Nuisance     x 

 The Protection of Children from Harm     
 
 
 
 

50



 

 

Details of representation 

 
 

The site is close to student properties and will doubtless increase public nuisance 

overnight given the licence is proposed to be for continuous operation. We already suffer 

from late night drinking on the streets and the nuisance this causes 

 

The premises will be the only one at this end of the city that is open all night and will thus 

attract people and undesirables from all over the area. Because the open nature of the 

University campus could mean increased numbers of these potential customers using 

The Pavilions as a cut through to reach the store; if then finding the gate closed during 

night time hours it could increase the workload, potential confrontation and threaten the 

safety of our staff and residents if free access is prohibited to them. Lone females are at 

particular risk of unwanted attention 

 

Our site already suffers from a high degree of trespass and bike theft and this will only 

get worse 

 

The store will not meet the University Safe Alcohol Selling Practices that operate in the 

area 

 

 
If possible please suggest alterations to the application that would resolve the problem 
mentioned above, again paying attention to the licensing objectives 

 
 

We do not have any objection to a licence being granted on more restricted grounds 

such as between the hours of 08:00 and 22:00 in line with other outlets in Lincoln but are 

very unhappy about the possibility that this as proposed will increase noise and 

disruption and on safety grounds. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



 

 

Once the Licensing Authority has received this form you will receive a written 
acknowledgment and you may be contacted to discuss the issue prior to any referral to 
a sub-committee hearing. 
 
Please tick this box if you consent to any notice of any hearing being sent to you to the 
e-mail address provided by you above.               X 
(Please note if any notice is sent to you by electronic means, you will also receive 
confirmation of the same in writing). 
 
Please tick this box if you do not intend to attend or be represented at any hearing.    
                                                                                X 
 
If you wish to withdraw any representations you may do so confirming this in writing to 
the address given below, providing you do so no later than 24 hours before the any 
hearing, or otherwise orally at the hearing. 
 
Signed: ………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
PRINT NAME:…Paul Rowlinson…………………………………………………………… 
 
 
Date: 7

th
 July 2016 

 
 
  
Please return this form to the following address: 
 
Licensing Team 
City of Lincoln Council 
City Hall 
Beaumont Fee 
Lincoln 
LN1 1DB 
 
 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



Appendix F – Information relating to S176 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Licensing Act 2003 

The Police has made reference to Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 in its 

representation. 

That section states: 

176 Prohibition of alcohol sales at service areas, garages etc. 

(1) No premises licence, club premises certificate or temporary event notice has 

effect to authorise the sale by retail or supply of alcohol on or from excluded 

premises. 

(2) In this section “excluded premises” means— 

(a) … 

(b) premises used primarily as a garage or which form part of premises which are 

primarily so used. 

(3) The Secretary of State may by order amend the definition of excluded premises in 

subsection (2) so as to include or exclude premises of such description as may be 

specified in the order. 

(4) For the purposes of this section— 

(a) … 

(b) … 

(c) premises are used as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following— 

(i) the retailing of petrol, 

(ii) the retailing of derv, 

(iii) the sale of motor vehicles, 

(iv) the maintenance of motor vehicles. 

In summary section 176 states that no licence to sell alcohol shall have effect on 

premises used primarily for the sale of petrol or derv (diesel). 

 

Section 182 guidance 

Paragraphs 5.21 to 5.23 of the Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of 

State for the Home Office (in March 2015) states: 

Garages and motorway service areas 

5.21 Section 176 of the 2003 Act prohibits the sale or supply of alcohol at motorway 

service areas (MSAs) and from premises which are used primarily as a garage, or 

59



are part of premises used primarily as a garage. Premises are used primarily as a 

garage if they are used for one or more of the following: 

i. the retailing of petrol; 

ii. the retailing of derv; 

iii. the sale of motor vehicles; and 

iv. the maintenance of motor vehicles. 

5.22 It is for the licensing authority to decide, based on the licensing objectives, 

whether it is appropriate for that premises to be granted a licence, taking into account 

the documents and information listed in section 17(3) and (4) which must accompany 

the application. 

5.23 If a licence is granted in respect of a premises and the primary use of that 

premises subsequently changes (for example, the primary use becomes that of a 

garage rather than a shop) it would no longer be legal to sell alcohol on that 

premises. If a relevant representation is made, the licensing authority must decide 

whether or not the premises are used primarily as a garage. The licensing authority 

may ask the licence holder to provide further information to help establish what the 

primary use of the premises is. 

The documents listed in Section 17(3) and (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 are: 

(3) An application under this section must also be accompanied— 

(a) by an operating schedule, 

(b) by a plan of the premises to which the application relates, in the prescribed form, 

and 

(c) if the licensable activities to which the application relates (“the relevant licensable 

activities”) include the supply of alcohol, by a form of consent in the prescribed form 

given by the individual whom the applicant wishes to have specified in the premises 

licence as the premises supervisor. 

(4) An “operating schedule” is a document which is in the prescribed form and 

includes a statement of the following matters— 

(a) the relevant licensable activities, 

(b) the times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable activities are to 

take place, 

(c) any other times during which it is proposed that the premises are to be open to 

the public, 

(d) where the applicant wishes the licence to have effect for a limited period, that 

period, 

(e) where the relevant licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, prescribed 

information in respect of the individual whom the applicant wishes to have specified 

in the premises licence as the premises supervisor, 

(f) where the relevant licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, whether the 

supplies are proposed to be for consumption on the premises or off the premises, or 

both, 

60



(g) the steps which it is proposed to take to promote the licensing objectives, 

(h) such other matters as may be prescribed. 

Paragraph 5.23 of the s.182 guidance states that after the licence has been granted 

if the primary use changes the licensing authority must decide whether the premises 

are used primarily as a garage, following a relevant representation being made. It 

therefore seems to suggest that there is no requirement for the applicant to prove 

primary use at the new application stage. 

Winckworth Sherwood, a firm of solicitors, have been in discussion with and met 

representatives of the Home Office, which is responsible for the section 182 

Guidance.  They wrote on the 1st April 2015, after the current Section 182 Guidance 

had been released in March 2015, that, 

“We have already spoken to the Home Office who have confirmed that the intention of this 

paragraph is that the decision on primary use follows the grant of the licence and is not part 

of the application process. We are hoping to get some form of written confirmation of this 

clarification from the Home Office. We expect that the revisions contained in the New 

Guidance will put an end to licensing officers and licensing committees asking to see primary 

use data as part of an application process. 

“However, we must stress that it is incumbent on all operators of petrol stations to monitor 

their primary use on a regular basis. Should a store be primarily used as a garage then any 

alcohol sales from that store would be unlawful. The licence holder could be liable to 

prosecution or face a review of its licence.” 

 

Licensing Authority Statement of Policy 

The Licensing Authority’s own Statement of Licensing Policy states at paragraph 

3.21: 

Section 176 of the Act provides that no premises licence, club premises certificate or 

temporary event notice can authorise the sale of alcohol on or from certain premises 

including premises used primarily as a garage (as defined in the Act) or form part of 

premises which are primarily so used. The Licensing Authority will establish primary 

use based on an examination of the intensity of use by customers of the premises 

and not based on an examination of gross or net turnover. 

The premises proposed under this application have not yet been constructed. The 

current premises located at the site functions as a garage and has no licence to sell 

alcohol. Therefore there is no history of usage, turnover, customer intensity or any 

other factor to determine primary use and the applicability of Section 176 of the 2003 

Act.  A pie chart has been submitted as part of the application but no reference is 

made to it in the operating schedule. Furthermore the chart is unclear as to the 

breakdown of the data provided, such as footfall, profits, turnover etc. 

If the primary use of the premises was the sale of petrol or derv then any sale of 

alcohol would be an unauthorised sale contrary to Section 136 of the Licensing Act 

2003 and if any alcohol was displayed for sale, then a further offence would occur 

under Section 137. 

61



136 Unauthorised licensable activities 

(1) A person commits an offence if— 

(a) he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises 

otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation, or 

(b) he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on. 

(2) … 

(3) … 

(4) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to 

imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to a fine not exceeding 

£20,000, or to both. 

(5) In this Part “authorisation” means— 

(a) a premises licence, 

(b) a club premises certificate, or 

(c) a temporary event notice in respect of which the conditions of section 98(2) to (4) 

are satisfied. 

137 Exposing alcohol for unauthorised sale 

(1) A person commits an offence if, on any premises, he exposes for sale by retail 

any alcohol in circumstances where the sale by retail of that alcohol on those 

premises would be an unauthorised licensable activity. 

Therefore, it follows that if a licence for the sale of alcohol was granted and the 

primary use of the garage was not the sale of petrol or diesel then alcohol could be 

sold lawfully. However, trading circumstances could change over the course of the 

life of the premises licence and the monitoring of the primary use would be the sole 

responsibility of the premises licence holder. 

The sub-committee should be aware that no guidance (including the Section 182 

guidance), policy or advice can override legislation and interpretation of the law can 

only be undertaken by a court.  The licensing authority has no discretion other than 

to determine an application as required by section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 

[provided it has been properly made in accordance with Section 17 of the Act].   

 

Provision of Services Regulations 2009 

In 2013, Shell UK Oil Products Limited made an application for a new premises 

licence for one of its premises, a garage forecourt site, on the A38 South Brent to 

South Hams District Council. The application received representations including 

concerns about “the sale of alcohol at a petrol station on a major road”. At the 

subsequent hearing, Shell made a submission that Section 176 of the Act is 

incompatible with the Provision of Services Regulations 2009. 

62



There appears to be a conflict between Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 and 

the EU Service Directive, namely the Provision of Service Regulations 2009. 

Regulation 14 of the Service Regulations states that an authorisation scheme, such 

as that in the Licensing Act 2003, must be: (a) non-discriminatory, (b) justified by an 

overriding reason relating to public interest, (c) the authorisation scheme must not 

set out objectives that could be achieved by less restrictive means. Furthermore 

Regulation 15 of the Service Regulations repeats the above criteria and adds that an 

authorisation scheme must also be: proportionate to the public interest; clear and 

unambiguous; objective; made public in advance; transparent and accessible.     

The relevant parts of the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 are set out below* 

The sub-committee considered the submissions and on return stated that they 

agreed that the provisions of s.176 were incompatible with the EU Service Directive. 

Consequently they discarded the need to prove primary use and proceeded to hear 

the substantive representations and determine the application unencumbered by any 

consideration of s. 176. 

It should be noted that the decision of the sub-committee in the Shell UK hearing 

was a decision made by a Licensing Authority and as such is not a legal precedent.  

 

Taking into account The 2003 Act, Guidance, Licensing Policy and The Service 

Regulations it is for the sub-committee to determine whether Section 176 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 is applicable to this application. 

 

 

*Provision of Services Regulations 2009  

14. (1) A competent authority must not make access to, or the exercise of, a service 

activity subject to an authorisation scheme unless the following conditions are 

satisfied. 

(2) The conditions are that— 

(a) the authorisation scheme does not discriminate against a provider of the 

service, 

(b) the need for an authorisation scheme is justified by an overriding reason 

relating to the public interest, and 

(c) the objective pursued cannot be attained by means of a less restrictive 

measure, in particular because inspection after commencement of the service 

activity would take place too late to be genuinely effective. 

15. (1) An authorisation scheme provided for by a competent authority must be based on 

criteria which preclude the competent authority from exercising its power of 

assessment in an arbitrary manner. 

(2) The criteria must be— 

63



(a) non-discriminatory, 

(b) justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest, 

(c) proportionate to that public interest objective, 

(d) clear and unambiguous, 

(e) objective, 

(f) made public in advance, and 

(g) transparent and accessible. 

(3) The conditions imposed by a competent authority for granting authorisation for a 

new establishment under an authorisation scheme must not duplicate requirements 

and controls— 

(a) to which the provider of the service is already subject in the United 

Kingdom or in another EEA state, and 

(b) that are equivalent or essentially comparable as regards their purpose. 

(4) The provider of the service must assist the competent authority by providing any 

necessary information requested by the competent authority regarding the 

requirements and controls referred to in paragraph (3); and paragraph (3) does not 

apply if the provider has not provided that information within a reasonable time of 

being requested to do so. 

(5) An authorisation granted by a competent authority under an authorisation scheme 

must enable the provider of the service to have access to the service activity, or to 

exercise that activity, throughout the United Kingdom, including by means of setting 

up agencies, subsidiaries, branches or offices, except where an authorisation for 

each individual establishment or a limitation of the authorisation to a particular part or 

area of the United Kingdom is justified by an overriding reason relating to the public 

interest. 

(6) In the case of a competent authority whose functions relate only to part of the 

United Kingdom, references in paragraph (5) to the United Kingdom are to that part 

of the United Kingdom. 

(7) A competent authority must grant an authorisation under an authorisation scheme 

as soon as it is established, in the light of an appropriate examination, that the 

conditions for authorisation have been met. 

(8) Except in the case of the granting of an authorisation, any decision of the 

competent authority relating to an authorisation under an authorisation scheme, 

including refusal or withdrawal of an authorisation, must be fully reasoned. 

64


	Agenda
	2 Procedure for Hearing
	3 Application for a Premises Licence: Morrisons Petrol Filling Station, Tritton Road, Lincoln, LN6 7QL
	Appendix A1 - Application
	Appendix A2 - Plan
	Appendix B1 - Representation - Police
	Appendix B2 - Police rep - Annex A Morrisons
	Appendix B3 - Police rep - Annex B Morrisons
	Appendix C - Representation - APS Properties
	Appendix D - Representation - Vero Group
	Appendix E - Representation Lincoln Students Union Morrisons
	Appendix F - Information relating to S176


